
 Town Board Meeting Minutes 
 Town of Onondaga 
 January 5, 2026  
 
 The Town Board of the Town of Onondaga met at a regular meeting at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
January 5, 2026 , at the Town of Onondaga Town Hall, 5020 Ball Road, Syracuse, New York. 
 
Present:  Supervisor   John P. Mahar 
   Councilor    Kathy Fedrizzi 
   Councilor    Lisa M. Goodwin 
   Councilor   Ellen Magnarelli Terrien 
   Councilor   John Wheatley 
    
   Town Attorney   Nadine Bell 
   Town Engineer   Bill Perrine 
   Town Clerk   Janet Hillery 
 
 

 1.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 2.  Public Comment  
 
  Town resident William Kelsey asked if the meeting agendas could specify which committees will 
be reporting at the meetings.  Councilor Fedrizzi said that sometimes it changes and often things are 
added at the last minute, so to be specific could be misleading.  Supervisor Mahar noted the request. 

 
3.  WIIA Grant Update – Councilor Kathy Fedrizzi 
 
  Councilor Fedrizzi reported that the Town Board received a letter indicating that the Town was 
awarded the WIIA grant in an amount not to exceed $ 1,720,274.00 for the Norton Bussey Water 
District.  Councilor Fedrizzi said that the Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) will contact the Town 
to guide us on the program requirements and related processes.  The Town sent a letter to the residents 
of the district notifying them of the grant award.  Councilor Fedrizzi said that this was quite a long 
process, dating back to when the Norton/Bussey Roads residents approached the Town in 2021, making 
the Town aware of the deplorable water conditions.  She said that this is a great deal of money and 
hopes this will help in providing relief to the residents living with unacceptable water conditions.  
Councilor Fedrizzi thanked Supervisor Mahar and the Town Board members who worked on this project, 
namely former Councilor Mary Ryan, who spent quite a bit of time on this.  She also thanked our Town 
Engineer, Legal Team, County Legislator Rich McCarron, and all the bipartisan support we received from 
public officials that helped move this grant forward.   

 
  Town resident Steve Majewski was present and said that an important component was left out 
of the letter to the residents.  He said nowhere does it say what it will cost the taxpayers.  Councilor 
Fedrizzi said that we have to discuss the next steps with the EFC.  Mr. Majewski said he’s not interested 
in the next step, he wants to know what it’s going to cost the taxpayers.  Mr. Majewski said that when 
the Town files the report with the EFC, it has to include the updated information, including the correct 
number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU’s).  He said that the only thing that was updated was that it 
went from being a 60% grant to a 70% grant.  He said that in November, the EDU number was 49, but it 
wasn’t changed to 55 on the financial report.  

 
   Town Engineer Bill Perrine said that the original engineers estimate of 55 EDU’s was reduced to 
49 after working with the NYS Department of Agriculture and Markets, and it was his understanding that 
the reduced EDU’s would be effective once the project is complete and EDUs are assessed annually 
regardless.  The engineering report should match the NYS Comptroller’s approved financial plan which 
included 55 EDU’s, a total NTE construction cost, and cost per EDU when submitted.  

 
   Mr. Majewski said that he spoke to the EFC and was told any updates need to be included on 
the application.  He also said that the application lists everyone on the water district and identifies how 
many units their parcels are.   He said that it hasn’t been updated since 2023.  Town Engineer Perrine 
said that he has a list from 2025 that they shared with the Department of Ag and Markets with the 
updated EDU’s and addresses showing the reductions.  

 
   Town resident Mr. Kilmore said that the list has to go to EFC for the grant application, along 
with the financial page, and said the EFC will have to look into this.  Councilor Fedrizzi said that there 
have been changes that took place over the past couple of months and will be talking to the EFC about 
them.  Mr. Majewski said he spoke with Judy Littrell of Ag and Markets, and that Supervisor Mahar 
asked it to be expedited before the cutoff date, so the Town Engineer could file the application, but did 
so without the correct information.   Mr. Majewski said that that changes the amount from $2,585 to 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 2 
 
$2,900 per household, and with the $400 it ends up being $3,300.  Mr. Majewski asked why we don’t 
have the new number, and Councilor Fedrizzi replied that we won’t know the cost until it goes out to 
bid.   

  Town resident Virginia Kilmore said that she was told that the whole thing would be dead if it 
didn’t pass by a certain date, and that people who wanted it were able to petition to get it passed.  
Supervisor Mahar asked at what public meeting was it stated that this would need to be passed by a 
certain date.  Ms. Kilmore said that it wasn’t at a public meeting, but believes it was a board member 
that told her.  She said that when she stopped by the Town Hall before the petition signing, she was told 
that we would only take a “yes” vote, which she thought was strange.  Supervisor Mahar said that by 
not signing the petition, that was a “no” vote.  She thought it was not happening as the deadline had 
passed, but then there was a  meeting two years ago saying that it had passed.  She said it’s not fair to 
the people who thought the project was not happening and this is why she feels like some of residents 
feel like they are being misled.  Supervisor Mahar said that the Town has proceeded under Article 12 of 
the Town Law  from the beginning and will continue to proceed under that law.  

 
  Town Councilor Ellen Magnarelli Terrien asked what happens if the amount comes back that is 
more than individuals can handle financially.  Supervisor Mahar said that if the bids come in higher than 
the top line number submitted, ($2,457,535), approved by the comptroller, then we have to start over. 
Town Attorney Nadine Bell said that the grant is for 70%, but we won’t know what the 30% will be until 
it goes out to bid.  If it goes over the $2,457,535 amount that was approved by the NY State 
Comptroller, the whole process will need to be started over again, which includes the petition process, 
the Public Hearings, the Order, etc.  Mr. Majewski stated that the legal department at the Comptroller’s 
office said that if it goes above $2,985 per household EDU’s, then it would require the petition process 
again since it would then exceed the acceptable threshold financially per household.  Supervisor Mahar 
said that we were told by our legal counsel, that it would not be the EDU total, but total of the entire 
project.  Mr. Majewski suggested our legal counsel contacts the Comptroller’s legal department to get 
the straight answer.  Town Attorney Bell said that what is tenable to one may not be tenable to another, 
but the number was approved by the NYS Comptroller.  

 
   Councilor Magnarelli Terrien asked what happens to the grant money if the project doesn’t 
advance.  Town Attorney Bell said that she is not sure, but she said we could give the money back to the 
State if we wanted to apply for more.  Councilor Fedrizzi pointed out that this ends up being a great 
amount of money since changing from the original 60% grant to 70%.  Virginia Kilmore said that some 
residents had more time than others, and Councilor Fedrizzi said that there was a public  hearing two 
years ago, and the process was followed.  Ms. Kilmore wants to know how many people will be on the 
dole paying for this.  Councilor Fedrizzi said there is a 4-lot subdivision currently at the planning board 
stage that will eventually be added.  Supervisor Mahar said that the project needs to go out to bid, and 
that the numbers before were just estimates.  Once we get the new numbers a letter will go out to the 
residents with the projected amounts.   

 
  Town Attorney Bell said that the report that was prepared in September can be accessed by 
submitting a FOIL request at the Town Clerk’s office.  Councilor Magnarelli Terrien wondered if we 
could get an e-mail list together of the affected residents to convey updates.  Councilor Fedrizzi and 
Supervisor Mahar replied that we already have one consisting of those residents that have provided 
their e-mail addresses, and they have received updates throughout the process.   

 
 
4.  Local Law A-2026 Veteran’s Exemption – Schedule Public Hearing 
 
  Town Councilor Lisa Goodwin introduced Local Law A-2026 resulting in the following resolution: 
 
 

TOWN OF ONONDAGA 
TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 

January 5, 2026 
 

TOWN OF ONONDAGA LOCAL LAW NO. A OF 2026 
 

(“A Local Law Amending Article III of Chapter 263 of the Town of Onondaga Code Pursuant to Real 
Property Tax Law §458-a”) 

 
Councilor Goodwin introduced proposed Local Law No. A-2026, amending Article III of Chapter 

263 of the Town of Onondaga Code to reflect updates made to New York State Real Property Law §458-
a, establishing a full exemption from real property taxes for veterans who have a one-hundred percent 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 3 
 
(100%) service-connected disability, and made the following motion, which was seconded by Councilor 
Magnarelli Terrien: 

 
WHEREAS, Volume 6 N.Y.C.R.R., Section 617 of the Regulations relating to Article 8 of the New 

York State Environmental Conservation Law, requires that as early as possible an involved agency shall 
make a determination whether a given action is subject to the aforementioned law; and 

 
WHEREAS, no other agency has the legal authority or jurisdiction to approve or directly undertake 

the enactment of a local law in the Town of Onondaga, such that there are no other involved agencies 
within the meaning of the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) with respect to the 
proposed enactment of said Local Law, with the result that the Town Board shall act as lead agency in this 
matter; and 

 
WHEREAS, the adoption of said Local Law is an unlisted action for purposes of environmental 

review under SEQRA; and 
WHEREAS, the Town Board has determined that a short environmental assessment form (EAF) 

shall be required in connection with this matter; and 
 
WHEREAS, said EAF has been prepared and has been reviewed by the Town Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board has considered the adoption of said Local Law, has considered the 

criteria contained in 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617.7 and has compared the impacts which may be reasonably 
expected to result from the adoption of said Local Law against said criteria. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED AND DETERMINED that the Town Board has determined this action shall have no 

significant adverse impact on the environment; that, accordingly, an environmental impact statement 
(EIS) shall not be required; and that this resolution shall constitute a negative declaration under SEQRA; 
and it is further; 

 
RESOLVED AND DETERMINED that the Town Board conduct a public hearing as to the enactment 

of proposed Local Law No. A-2026 at the Town Hall located at 5020 Ball Road in the Town of Onondaga 
on February 2, 2026, at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard, at which time all 
persons interested in the subject shall be heard. 

 
The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 

call, the vote was as follows: 
 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

 
5.  LWRP GRANT UPDATE 
 
  Town Engineer Bill Perrine provided an update on the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program 
(LWRP) Grant, through the NYS Regional Economic Development Council.  He said the Town applied for 
this in 2024 and the Town was not awarded the grant.  It was resubmitted in 2025 and Mr. Perrine 
reported that we were successful in securing that this time, in the amount of $106,250.  This grant 
money will be used for the Town and consulting Engineers to develop a program for the Onondaga 
Creek in Nedrow; to enhance the Onondaga Creek waterfront by creating accessible public spaces, 
recreational opportunities, and spur economic development.  The program will address opportunities to 
extend trails and improve waterfront accessibility, connectivity and enhance tourism.  He made a point 
to clarify that this grant money is only to be used for a study to identify projects to come up with a plan, 
not for costs associated with construction or plans to build.  Supervisor Mahar asked if this would 
include the Route 11 corridor in Nedrow, and Mr. Perrine said that yes, it would.   

 
  Town resident Justin Polly asked that the residents of the area be notified in advance of any 
potential plans that would affect or involve their property, and Supervisor Mahar agreed to the request.   



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 4 
 

  Supervisor Mahar asked Town Engineer Bill Perrine if the City of Syracuse received this grant, 
and he replied that he wasn’t sure, but that there has been informal discussion about working with the 
City on the Creekwalk.  Mr. Perrine said that Dorwin Ave is the City/Town boundary line and thinks there 
is an opportunity to work with the City to potentially extend the Creekwalk.   Supervisor Mahar pointed 
out the differences between the Town and the City, pertaining to ownership of the creek bank, etc., 
which may pose a challenge which will need to be worked through.  Supervisor Mahar said that another 
idea being considered is for further redevelopment of Kelly Park, which came up during a traffic study.  

 
 
6.  Highway Superintendent’s Report 
   
  Town Supervisor John Mahar commended Highway Superintendent John Smith for the 
outstanding job he and his crew have been doing this winter.  Highway Superintendent John Smith said 
that in December alone, we had 60.8 inches of snow, and that it has been one of the worst he has seen.  
He said his crew deserves the credit for staying on top of it all.  Highway Superintendent Smith said that 
he is in need of another full-time employee and requested the following resolution: 

 
TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 

 
 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Fedrizzi and seconded by Councilor Wheatley 
to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the hiring of Paul Warren for the 
position of Mechanical Equipment Operator on a full-time basis, at an hourly rate of $26.80, with a start 
date of 1/19/2026. 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
  Highway Superintendent Smith also said that he is looking to add another truck in the near 
future, hoping to add that by November of 2026.  He said that the plow route is very long now, requiring 
more hours.  This would be to add a new truck, not to replace an existing one, and is in the budget.  
Town resident Steve Majewski asked if he’s had any trouble getting salt this year, and he said there is 
about a 3-5 day wait so far.    

 
 
7.  Fire and Safety Committee Report 
 
  Fire and Safety Committee member John Wheatley began his report by congratulating all the 
newly elected officers at the Town fire departments and wished them the best of luck!  Councilor 
Wheatley requested the following resolutions: 

 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Wheatley and seconded by Councilor 
Goodwin to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves new member Michael Valenti of 
Breakspear Road, Syracuse, who was accepted into membership by the Taunton Volunteer Fire 
Department.   
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
   
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 5 
 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

 
TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 

 
 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Wheatley  and seconded by Councilor 
Fedrizzi  to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves new member Michael Magno of Ivy 
Ridge Rd, Syracuse, who was accepted into membership by the Onondaga Hill Volunteer Fire 
Department.   
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
 
  Town Councilor John Wheatley said that the following request is for members who were 
previous members of the Marcellus Fire Department Auxiliary and worked closely with the Howlett Hill 
Fire Department on events over the years.  The members said they feel they would be more effective as 
social members of the Howlett Hill Fire Department, resulting in the following resolution: 

 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Wheatley  and seconded by Councilor 
Goodwin  to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the following new members who 
were accepted into membership by the Howlett Hill Volunteer Fire Department.   
 
NAME    ADDRESS     STATUS_____________ 
Jennifer Cebeniak  Sevier Rd., Marietta    Social 
Rebecca Somerville  Otisco Valley Rd., Marietta   Social 
Olivia Somerville  Otisco Valley Rd., Marietta   Social 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
 
8.  Codes Officer’s Report 
 
  Town Codes Director Jeffrey Herrick began by welcoming new Town Councilor Ellen Magnarelli 
Terrien, and invited her to the Codes Department meetings held on Monday mornings at 9:00 a.m.    

 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 6 
 

  Codes Director Herrick reported that 30 permits were issued since last report in December, 25 
of them being gas permits which were homes built by Heritage Homes and Cordelle Development.  He 
said they are saving their gas permits to be used in 2026.  Mr. Herrick also reported that he received 
more today from Sal Sciuga and will be holding those permits to be used in 2026 as well.  He also 
reported there have been 4 fire inspections since last report.  Mr. Herrick also discussed an issue at 
Crazy Daisies and said they installed two gas fired heaters just below the ceiling, which is lined with 
burlap bags.  They are currently closed and would typically open in February, but he told them they 
cannot reopen until this is rectified.  Mr. Herrick said the Codes Department is currently working with 
the owners on this and provided them with the information on the correct furnace to be installed.  
There were also electrical violations, and they are working with Codes on that as well.   

 
  Codes Director Herrick reported that two of the four businesses at the strip mall at 6703 S. 
Salina Street are out of compliance.  He said it is owned by a foreign company that is not returning his 
calls or accepting mail and said he will be dealing with that this week.   

 
  Mr. Herrick also said his evaluation of the Jon Diaz Center is complete, and he will be submitting 
his report to V.I.P. Structures to approve the building plans.  Supervisor Mahar asked Mr. Herrick if he’d 
seen the site plan review by C&S Engineers that was receive today yet.  Supervisor Mahar said there 
were many recommendations and Mr. Herrick said he would follow up with that.    

 
  Mr. Herrick also reported that Municity Training will begin January 20th and will run 
approximately three weeks.   

 
 
9.  Personnel Committee 

 
 
  Town Councilor and Personnel Committee member Kathy Fedrizzi requested the following 
resolution in response to retiring Parks Labor Crew Leader, Rich Lamphier: 

 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Fedrizzi and seconded by Councilor Wheatley 
to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the hiring of Joseph D. Czornij for the 
position of Parks Labor Crew Leader, on a full-time basis, at the budgeted annual salary of $49,000, with 
a start date of 1/12/26. 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

 
 10.  Southwood Park Update 
 
  Town Councilor Lisa Goodwin provided an update to the proposed Southwood Park District in 
Jamesville.  She said that she recently received an e-mail from the JD School District Superintendent 
saying that they will be meeting with their real estate agent tomorrow (1/6/26) to get an approximate 
value of the land that the Town would like to lease to potentially put in a park.   

 
 
 11.  Parks and Recreation Director’s Report 
 
  Parks and Recreation Director Charry Lawson began her report by welcoming new Town 
Councilor Ellen Magnarelli Terrien and invited her to the monthly senior luncheons at the Town Senior 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 7 
 
Center.  Ms. Lawson also requested a pay increase for three of her seasonal laborers, resulting in the 
following resolution: 

 
 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Goodwin and seconded by Councilor Fedrizzi 
to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the following Parks and Recreation 
payroll changes as follows: 
 
NAME   TITLE  BUDGET CODE        HOURLY SALARY         EFFECTIVE DATE  
 
Robert Manipole          Park Laborer         ALPK. 102  $20.00      12/21/25 
Thomas Needham        Park Laborer ALPK. 102  $19.00      12/21/25 
Gordon Franz             Park Laborer ALPK. 102  $19.00      12/21/25 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 
 
 12.  Town Engineer’s Report 
 
  Town Engineer Bill Perrine reported that he was approached by Highway Superintendent John 
Smith about a sharp curve on Kasson Road leading to Pleasant Valley Road, of which seems to be nearly 
a 90 degree turn.  There was recently an accident there, and Mr. Smith asked if the Town Engineer could 
look into it and what they recommend in terms of safety precautions.  Town Engineer Perrine said that 
he consulted with one of C&S’s Transportation Principal engineers and asked them to make a site visit.  
They visited the site, and will be preparing an email memo outlining recommendations for signage so 
the roadway complies with NYSDOT standards.  

 
  Supervisor Mahar discussed with Town Engineer Perrine an issue relating to the Town Hall 
parking.  Supervisor Mahar said that we lost 4 parking spots that are now dedicated to the EV Charging 
Stations.  He also said the number of Sheriff’s cars parked there is well over the 35 spots originally 
allocated and thinks it’s more in the range of 60.  This, along with the snow, has created limited the 
number of spots available.  Mr. Mahar spoke to County Legislator Rich McCarron about a possible grant 
to add parking and was wondering if Mr. Perrine could give an estimate of what it would cost to add 
parking that Mr. McCarron could present to the legislature.  Supervisor Mahar said he is hoping to add 
10 – 12 new spots.  Town Engineer Perrine replied that they did do a sketch of two areas to capture 
more spaces in 2025 and is willing to work with the Town Board on a third area.   

 
  Town Engineer Perrine also reported that former Town Councilor Mary Ryan was working to 
secure a grant from the County to clean out the west branch tributary of Onondaga Creek in South 
Onondaga where it crosses over to Nichols Road.  Mr. Perrine was pleased to report that the grant was 
awarded to the Town in the amount of $50,000.  It will be used to prepare the necessary DEC and Army 
Corps of Engineers permits for a Joint Application for Permit for stream disturbance thereby allowing for 
the potential of construction and mitigation in the future.   

 
  
13.  Budget Modification – Consolidated Drainage 
 
  Town Supervisor John Mahar is requesting a resolution to cover engineering expenses incurred 
due to a temporary easement in Brittany Hills, resulting in the following resolution: 

 
 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 8 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Goodwin and seconded by Councilor 
Wheatley to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the following 2025 Consolidated 
Drainage Budget Modification: 
 
 FROM      TO    AMOUNT 
 
 SD599 Appropriated Fund Balance SD8540.4 CONTRACTUAL  $600.00 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

 
 
14.   Minutes Approval – 12/15/25 Town Board Meeting 
 
 

 TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Councilor Wheatley and seconded by Councilor 
Goodwin to wit: 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Onondaga Town Board approves the meeting minutes of the 12/15/25 
Town Board meeting, as prepared by the Town Clerk.  
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted    Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien             Abstained  ----- 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted   Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted   Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

 
15.   Abstract Approval  -  12/30/2025 
   
 The following Abstracts were audited and approved for payment on 12/30/2025: 
 

• All General Fund Account on Abstract No 25,  numbers 1206 through 1270 inclusive, totaling 
$69,195.97.  

• All Highway Fund Accounts on Abstract No. 25 numbers 513 through 530 inclusive, totaling 
$114,282.45. 

• All Parks Fund Accounts on Abstract No. 25 numbers 195 through 200 inclusive, totaling 
$2,628.02. 

• All Sewer Accounts on Abstract No 21, numbers 34 through 35 inclusive, totaling $705.87. 
• All Trust & Agency Accounts on Abstract No. 14, totaling $1,074.60. 

 
 

TOWN BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

 The following resolution was offered by Supervisor Mahar and seconded by Councilor Goodwin 
to wit: 



Town Board Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026   
p. 9 
 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, that there being no further business to come before the regular meeting of the 
Town of Onondaga Town Board, the Town Board meeting move to Executive Session to obtain advice 
from Counsel, with no action expected. 
 

The question of the enactment of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote and upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: 

 
  Councilor  Kathy Fedrizzi                Voted   Yes 
  Councilor  Lisa M. Goodwin                            Voted  Yes 
  Councilor  Ellen Magnarelli Terrien  Voted  Yes 
  Councilor  John Wheatley   Voted  Yes  
  Supervisor  John P. Mahar   Voted  Yes 
 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

  The Town Board moved to Executive Session at 5:47 p.m.  The Town Board returned from 
Executive Session at 6:50 p.m. with no action taken.  The Regular Meeting and Executive Session of the 
Town of Onondaga Town Board adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 

 
Janet J. Hillery 

Town Clerk 


